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PROCEEDI NGS

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Good eveni ng and
wel cone everybody to the city of Rockville
Pl anni ng Comm ssion neeting. This is our 17th
neeting of the year 2020, and it is being held
virtually via WebEx due to City Hall being closed
on account of the ongoing COVID 19 pandemic we're
all suffering.

We only have one agenda item tonight.
And al so, | should note there are six of seven
conm ssioners present. W're short one
comm ssioner this evening. But we only have one
agenda itemthis evening, and that is a public
heari ng on our Draft Conprehensive Pl an, Vol une
|1, which covers planning areas. This is the
second of two hearings that the Pl anning
Comm ssion is holding, and the previous hearing

was al ready held on our |ast neeting, which was

Septenber 9th, | believe. So, this is our second
and final neeting virtually -- well, in general.
And just I'mgoing to start us off, |I'm

going to turn it over to staff to start us off on
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this. However, | just have a few quick
announcenents initially.

So, one is that we, at |ast check, we
had 37 people registered, pre-registered, which is
a procedure for participating in this virtually,
which is quite a |lot conpared to our usual
neetings. | have heard that sone people may have
potentially registered by m stake, that they just
wanted to listen into the neeting and not
necessarily give coomentary. So, if that is the
case, you can sign out and continue to watch
either on regular TV or via streamvia the city's
website. But, in any case, if you do want to
speak and you're signed up, that's the plan. So,
pl ease feel free to participate in any case.

| do want to say that we have slightly
nodi fi ed our usual procedures, not a |ot, but
sinply to account for the virtual nature of this.
And one thing about that is that we have limted
of three mnutes for every speaker. And that
actually is how we do it anyways. And five

mnutes if you're representing a civic association
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or a simlar entity.

But | will say we're going to be very
strict wwth that limt. Qur l[ast public hearing
nobody went over by not even one second. And so

we are going to hold everybody to three m nutes.

There will be a display on the screen so you can
tell how nmuch tine you have renmaining. | do
apol ogi ze ahead of tine. It's not that | want to

cut people off, but we do have a | ot of speakers.
And even that aside, inportant, the main reason we
have this rule is just to ensure fairness fromone
speaker to the next, so it's going to a
three-minute limt or five if you're with an

or gani zat i on.

In any case, the virtual testinony is
just one way of conmunicating to us your thoughts
and feelings on our draft plan. W also take
witten testinony and, in fact, even prefer it or
encourage it, especially given the difficult tines
we're going through right now And that can be
provi ded after tonight. W voted at our | ast

neeting to keep the public record open until
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Cctober 7th, close of business, | think 5 p.m to
be precise. So, that gives anyone additional tine
to provide further comentary in witing to us.
And you are not limted; if you speak tonight and
you want to give further commentary in witing,
you can. You can do that up until we close the
public record on it.

So, those are ny initial coments.
Agai n, welcone and we're all |ooking forward to
heari ng everybody's thoughts.

So, with that, unless any other of ny
fell ow conm ssioners have any initial coments,
"Il turn it over to staff, city staff, to get us
started on this itemand get the public hearing
under way.

MR. LARSON. Yes, thank you, Chairperson
Littlefield. This is Cark Larson. I'ma
princi pal planner in the Planning and Devel opnent
Services Departnent. And |'mjoined here with
just part of the project teamthat's been working
on bringing the Draft Conprehensive Plan to the

Pl anni ng Comm ssion for their consideration and
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del i beration over the past few years.

| wanted to nanme a few others who are on
the call today: Andrea Glles, David Levy, Jim
Wasi | ak, Larissa Klevan, Mnisha Tewari, N chol as
Dumais. And those are the staff | see. | think
everyone el se who you m ght see pictures of on the
screen are either planning comm ssioners, who are
al so i nportant people, as well. But there's a |ot
of other staff behind the scenes who have been
working with us over the years, so | want to
recogni ze them as well.

So, | will start sharing ny screen now
to provide a little nore visual interest. And as
Chairperson Littlefield said, this is the public
hearing to accept oral testinony, spoken
testi nony, for the "Planning Areas" draft of the
Conpr ehensi ve Plan Update that we're working on.
We've called it "Rockville 2040." And |I'll get
into alittle bit nore about the background and
how we' ve been goi ng through the process in the
next coupl e slides.

Some m | estones that we've hit and
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expect to hit in the future. An initial staff
draft was revi ewed by the Planning Comm ssion of
Decenber of |ast year through January. And this
was really the culmnation of staff work behind
the scenes, but also working to speak with the
public and neet with the public in various groups
and settings to create the "Planning Areas" draft.
And the Pl anni ng Conm ssion had sone edits and
changes to the draft before they decided to
release it to public review, and that happened in
February of 2020.

And it's been out on the street in
various forns and venues since then. Although we
had sone -- you'll see below, on the public
heari ng dates scheduled in May 2020, to have
what' s happeni ng now happen back in My, so we had
to, because of the COVI D pandem c, reschedul e
t hose, figure out better ways to do outreach and
get the word out about it, and figure out howto
hold a virtual public hearing, as well.

So, right now we are at the public

heari ng phase of the draft review, but we've been
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accepting witten testinony every since February.
So, the public record has been open since then
and, as Comm ssioner Littlefield said, wll be
open until Cctober 7th.
And then after that passes, we will be
nmoving into the work session phase with the
Pl anni ng Comm ssion, reviewing all of the
testi nony that was received on the "Planning
Areas" draft and any comments that we m ght have
recei ved on other portions of the Conp Plan. [I'l]
talk in a mnute about what's in Volune |. |
think I wll. If I don't, I'Il bring it up |ater.
But we expect to have work session
neetings in October, Novenber, and Decenber at
regul ar Planning Comm ssion neetings. And at that
poi nt, the Planning Conmm ssion nmay deci ded t hat
the draft and both volunes for the elenents for
cityw de policies and the planning areas are in a
good enough format that they can vote to approve
It for consideration by the Mayor and Council.
So, that is another step after this point where

the Pl anning Comm ssion really is the review
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authority that initiates the Conprehensive Pl an
updates and they send it on to Mayor and Counci |
for approval, ultimte approval.

So, | don't know |'mgoing to do a
quick -- yeah, | don't knowif | talk about the
Volunme | in these slides, but I will just briefly
mention that what we've terned "Volume |I" are the
10 cityw de elenents. They have to do with
transportation, |and use, housing, the
envi ronment, water resources, and some ot her
topics. And they really have recomended policies
and actions to take that apply to the entire city,
cityw de. These planning area policies and
reconmendations are really specific chapters for
each planning area, which is a nei ghborhood- based
area, a nei ghborhood-scale area of a cluster of
nei ghbor hoods, maybe sone commercial areas. W
think of themas really common areas of the city
that have a simlar character, have an affinity
wi th each other.

The boundaries really represent just

that, just breaking it up for organi zational sake.
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They are treated equally as far as the | and use
categories are pretty nuch the sane across them
but they're just kind of broken up in sort of
sections or chapters by planning area for the ease
of being able to focus on what certain planning
areas m ght need over others. So, | think |I've
covered sone of that.

So, it includes in -- essentially each
pl anni ng area has area-specific policy changes.

It m ght be one property or a group of properties,
zoni ng and desi gn recommendati ons that woul d be
consi dered during new devel opnents or changes in

| and uses, potential city projects that m ght take
pl ace in any one planning area, and other topics
for study.

And |'ve had the website up here for a
little while. [It's pretty easy to find if you
want to find out any information or read the
actual draft if you haven't yet. |It's the city's
website, rockvillend. gov/ Rockvill e-2040.

Alittle bit about what we've been doing

over this past year for public outreach. W've
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gone through the official channels of sending

|l etters and notifications to the State Departnent
of Pl anni ng, surrounding jurisdictions, advertised
it in the paper. But we're really also tried to

| everage as nmuch el ectronic outreach as we can,
emai |l distribution lists, websites, the city's
Rockvill e Reports articles, social nedia. W
haven't been able to go out into the community as
much as we had hoped this year, although that has
been happeni ng over the entire Rockville 2040
process through initial conversations wth a
nunber of -- essentially every nei ghborhood that
we could contact, every planning area. So, this
is really the public outreach that we've done this
year, although we have been face-to-face with the
community in the past.

So, as Comm ssioner Littlefield said,
this tonight, the public hearing, is an
opportunity oral testinony. |It's not the only
opportunity to provide coments and testinony to
the Pl anni ng Comm ssion. You can email them

directly at this address,
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pl anni ng. conm ssi on@ ockvi | | end. gov, and the all
receive that at once. W also receive it and we
add it to the record that way.

You can online to our project website
and submt comrents through an online forum It's
really just nanme, address, topic, and you can type
in the comment field there. O you can use the
ol d-school mail-in witten testinony. W're stil
checking mail at Gty Hall even though we have a
skel eton crew there basically.

Al oral and witten testinony wll be
made avail able to the Planning Comm ssion during
the work sessions. W'Il|l be summrizing it and
sort of organizing it for discussion at that
point, so it's al considered part of the public
record.

So, the official part of ny
presentation, our recommendation is for the
Pl anni ng Commi ssion to receive oral testinony on
the Draft Plan tonight and confirmthe work
sessi on dates that already have been di scussed,

but just to have thembe solidified as far as the
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next few neetings for work sessions.

So, with that, it starts the public
testinony period. And I'll stop sharing ny
screen. | think it's going to cone back to Bonita
(phonetic). And | think we'll just start going
down the list. |It's basically in the order of
whi ch we were contacted for public testinony.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Thank you, M.
Larson. It looks like we're ready to proceed then
wWith our public testinony. So, | have the |ist
open and I wll just state the nane and address.
We don't need to state it for the record because
we al ready have it.

So, nunber 1 is Mke Stein, 13004
Atlantic Avenue, in representation of Tw nbrook
Community Association. MKke, are you online with
us?

MR, STEIN. | am Can you hear ne?

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Yep. Welcone and
pl ease proceed. You have five mnutes as a civic
associ ati on representati ve.

MR. STEIN: Thank you. Good eveni ng,
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M. Chair and fell ow conm ssioners as noted. M
nane is Mke Stein and | am speaki ng toni ght as
presi dent of the Tw nbrook Conmunity Associ ati on,
who Wi shes to thank you for this opportunity to
provi de feedback to the Pl anning Conm ssion on the
Draft Conprehensive Plan for the Gty of
Rockville. W have a longer witten docunent we
will submt as witten testinony, but tonight
we'll just be reading a few excerpts.

Volunme |1, which represents Rockville's
pl anning areas, is a positive step forward in a
| ong-range plan to devel op our beloved city. W
especially want to thank city planning staff for
their efforts over the last five years. City
staff have me with Tw nbrook residents at | east
three tinmes since 2015. According to Rockville
2040's website, this appears nore than any ot her
pl anning area. W appreciate the outreach and
think the plan accurately reflects the vision of
t he nei ghbor hood shared by nei ghbors at the
neeting. TCA agrees with all of the

reconmmendations in the plan for Planning Area 8,
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and we will specifically highlight those we find
nost i nportant and were comented on by nei ghbors
as part of our outreach.

Wth regard to | and use, housing, and
econom c devel opnent, we appl aud the inclusion of
the Twi nbrook Metro Station area and the Veirs
MIIl Corridor in the |land use policy map to ensure
t hat Twi nbrook residents have access to flexible
zoni ng arrangenents that allow for growh and
housi ng options. W think this is a smart and
creative way to help address the city's and
county's housing needs in the future, as well as
support the Metro and the hopefully soon to be
built Bus Rapid Transit along Veirs MI| Road.

In particular, the residential-retail
nodes highlighted in Areas 2 and 3 are responsive
to the community's request to be a nore wal kabl e
nei ghbor hood. The area around the Tw nbrook Metro
IS an inportant one to our community. |t connects
us to the retail and services provided al ong
Rockvill e Pike. W support transit-oriented

devel opnent that can connect the residential side
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of the track to the Pike in a neani ngful way,

I ncl udi ng a pedestrian-bi ke crossing. This wl]l
also fulfill our shared goal of a truly wal kabl e
city. Project 6 remains a top priority of the
nei ghbor hood.

Wth regards to transportation, we | ook
forward to the possibility that the BRT will bring
for innovation, econom c devel opnent, easing of
traffic congestion. W strongly support a BRT
station at Atlantic Avenue as well as the
extension of Atlantic through to McAuliffe shoul d
t he shoppi ng center be devel oped.

The extension of Lewis Avenue to Fishers
Lane is a project that has been raised many tines
over the decades. W understand it has been
controversial and there was limted support for it
In the past. However, we believe the tine has
cone to inplenent this inprovenent. Wth the
recent and anticipated future devel opnent at
Twi nbrook Metro, it serves as another access point
for the nei ghborhood.

We understand the concerns peopl e have
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using Lewi s -- about people using Lewi s Avenue as
a cut-through to avoid Rockville Pike. However,
In this age of smartphones and navi gati on apps, we
believe that this cut-through traffic already
occurs. People already use Lewis Avenue to get to
and fromthe Pike and Tw nbrook Parkway. But
today that neans a (technical inaudible) also been
a long-tinme request of residents.

In the area of recreation and parks, we
encourage an investnent in the Rockcrest Conmunity
Center so that it nay serve as a |location for
community neetings, prograns, and sports. At a
recent TCA nenbership neeting, support for Project
8 was specifically nentioned as a need.
Rockville's ballet programis highly regarded and
a strength of the city's recreation program
| nprovenent and expanding in this facility would
be a benefit not only to Tw nbrook, but also the
city.

And lastly tonight, | wanted to comment
on sone testinony you received fromthe Canbridge

Wal k HOA on Septenber 9th. The TCA strongly
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supports Canbridge Wal k HOA's request to remain
part of Planning Area 8 rather than part of the
Rockvill e Pi ke Planning Area or Planning Area 9.
Al t hough the townhone conmunities al ong Hal pi ne
are represented by their own HOAs, they are and
hi storically have been part of the Tw nbrook
communi ty.

We share their general concern about the
potential redevel opnent of the properties at 5906
Hal pi ne Road, the Tw nbrook Community Church, and
5946 Hal pi ne Road. TCA does not have a position
at this time on the appropriate zoning for these
two properties. However, we do support townhones,
a mssing mddle housing, at these locations. W
are in contact wth the Canbridge Wal k HOA and are
commtted to working together to find a solution
t hat works for everyone. W believe that can best
be acconplished if we all remain part of the sane
pl anni ng ar ea.

Thank you.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Thank you for your

comments, M. Stein.
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The next on ny list is Bob Youngentob of
EYA, LLC, 4800 Hanpton Lane, Bethesda. Bob, are
you wth us? Hello? Mybe you need to unnute.
Bob, are you connected?

MR, YOUNGENTOB: There we go. Can you
hear nme now?

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Yes, yes. Wl cone.

MR, YOUNGENTOB: | was trying to unnute.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Loud and cl ear.

MR, YOUNGENTOB: | apol ogi ze there, but
| was trying to unnute.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: No probl em
Wl cone. Go ahead.

MR, YOUNGENTOB: Thank you, Chairnman
Littlefield and nenbers of the Comm ssion. For
the record, |I'm Bob Youngentob |I'm the CEO of EYA
Wiile we're newto this process here tonight in
the city, we're not new obviously to the Cty of
Rockville. As many of you know, we have been
I nvol ved i n nunerous devel opnents in the city over
the years, including |eading the devel opnent

effort at Falls G ove as wel| as under
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construction today over at Tower Qaks.

W are here tonight to speak about the
Rockshire site and specifically the
recommendati ons for the Rockshire property. |
have a couple of slide that Clark is going to
share for ne. Maybe, dark, if you could just
advance to the second -- yeah, go ahead. This
just shows the site itself, but going to the
second slide -- if you go to the next one --
really just focused on one of the concerns that we
have in the | anguage that speaks to the
requi renent -- if you go back one -- to
substantial retail. And the idea that the
| anguage | believe today says "substantial retail
and/ or a community gathering space."

Havi ng been involved in the devel opnent
at Park Potomac and Falls G ove, there is
substantial retail that has al ready been devel oped
inthis area. And if retail was possible, it
i kel y woul d have al ready taken place on the
Rockshire site. W do not believe it's feasible

for newretail to be built there and, therefore,
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woul d |i ke the | anguage changed or clarified so it
takes away the "and" and provi des | anguage of
"substantial retail or a community gathering
space. "

| f you go to the next slide, what we
believe is appropriate for this property, and
again we were brought into the site by the
| andowners and are currently the contract
devel oper of the property, is primarily a
residential devel opnent with a comunity gathering
space at the intersection of Hurley and Woten
Par kway. W believe it is an appropriate |ocation
for a significant community gathering space that
coul d serve not only people using the bike path
and the bike trails, but also the residents of the
broader community.

We believe that architecturally that the
devel opnent -- | know we're not here to tal k about
a devel opnent plan, but the devel opnent could, if
you go to the next slide, reflect and be
conpati ble with the existing residential in the

nei ghbor hood. And these are sone exanpl es of
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various townhone architectural styles that we have
I ncorporated not only on the lower right at Falls
G ove, but also in dowmtown Silver Spring and
Arlington, and the lower left at Tower QOaks today.

It's not a secret that housing demand is
of critical inportance in the city. The city has
endorsed the Council of Governnent study. There
I's much talk in the plan about the need for
addi tional m ssing mddle housing. W believe
t hat townhones are the appropriate use for this
site and they wll definitely be conpatible with
t he adj oi ni ng townhones, the community pool, the
church, and the bordering streets.

We do believe that this is a unique
opportunity to take advantage of existing
i nfrastructure where there is existing road
net wor k, existing school capacity, existing
utility capacity to build on an infill property
with new mssing mddle housing. W're excited to
be selected by the | andowner to be the devel oper
of this property and we | ook forward to working

wth the comunity to address their concerns as

Ander son Court Reporting -- 703-519-7180 -- www. ander sonreporting. net



Sept ember 23 Agenda Item 1. A Page:

25

1

2

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

best we can.

But, again, | think the |anguage today
provi des too nmuch anbiguity with regard to the
expectation for retail. And | think clarifying
that | anguage will allow this devel opnent to nove
forward. Unfortunately, the property obviously
has sat vacant for a nunber of years and we
believe this is a unique tinme and a uni que
opportunity to actually see this solved, both for
econom ¢ devel opnent reasons, for the creation of
new m ssing mddle housing, and also for the
addi tion of sonme new affordable housing in the
formof the MPDUs that go along with the site.

| don't see the tiner on mne, so |
assunme that |"'mout of tine. But |I'mavailable to
answer any questions if there are any by the
conmi Ssi oners.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Thank you, M.
Youngent ob. Conmi ssioners, any questions?

And yes, please feel free to share that
wth us in witing, as well, the slides you were

presenti ng.
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| would ask a favor of city staff. |
had a problemduring the -- just now with ny ot her
monitor, so | don't have the participant list. |
know we' re on participant nunber 3, so if sonebody
has that open, if they could please ask the
participant to start. And | wll fix nmy nonitor.
|"m pretty sure it's fixable.

COMM SSI ONER HADLEY: It's Robert
Harris.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Pardon?
Comm ssi oner Hadl ey, you have it?

COWM SSI ONER HADLEY: It's Robert

Harris.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Ckay.

COW SSI ONER HADLEY: W th (inaudible),
| believe.

CHAIR LI TTLEFIELD: M. Harris, are you
Wi th us?

MR. LARSON. M ght be working on
unnut i ng.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Yeah. It takes sone
getting used to. |Is he confirnmed on, though, on
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our list?

MR HARRIS: [1'm8l1l. This is Bob
Harris. | was nuted, | apol ogize.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: No probl em

MR. HARRIS: A common crine.

CHAIR LITTLEFIELD: It is. W're all
guilty of it. Wlconme. Go ahead.

MR. HARRI'S: Thank you. For the record,
|"'m Bob Harris and | wanted to speak briefly and
al so about the Rockshire Center, supporting the
principles of the Draft Plan that staff has worked
so hard on, but | want to clarify three issue.

One is the retail, two is the community us, and
the third one is parking on there.

As those of you who have lived any tine
I n Rockville know, a | ot has changed in the retai
worl d since the Rockshire Shopping Center was
built. And when it was built originally it worked
wel |, but since then we've had a proliferation of
retail around the area, fromFalls Gove to
Travilah to Park Potomac to even the new shopping

center on Research Boul evard, a new grocery store
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on Darnestown Road. And at the same tinme, what
has happened is big box retailers have eaten into
the normal retail that we were used to at the
time. So, retail is struggling throughout the
country and, you know, this center has been
closed. Gant left |I think eight years ago and
the other retailers left soon after that.

The owner of the property, whom |
represent, has tried diligently to find tenants
there and just to no success. So, we have a
concern about the |anguage in the plan that calls
for substantial retail as an option. W just, in
all honesty, do not believe it's a realistic
option. W did provide the staff with a research
study that was done sone tinme ago that anplifies
t his.

Secondly, it does talk about "or an
amenity," which makes sone sense so | ong as
expectations are realistic here. There has been
talk by sone in the comunity that they want to a

new community center built there. O course, a

new one was built not |ong ago up at Thomas Farm
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that serves the west side of 1-270 very well.

It's probably the biggest, best, and newest of the
community centers, and it's only about a mle and
a half away fromthe Rockshire area. W think
that neets the major community need.

Rat her, we think that what would serve
the community well would be nore of an outdoor
gat heri ng space that would be consistent with the
MIlennial Trail and what's going on in the
conmmunity around there. And | know that EYA is
| ooki ng at ways in which to do that. So, we're
hopi ng that the Planning Comm ssion will see that
as a nore viable option.

Lastly, there's been sone recent
di scussi on about parking. The property today
provi des about 31 spaces for the Rockshire pool
under an agreenent that was entered nmany years
ago. The owners of the property have very
i ntention of continuing to adhere to that
agreenent and will do so. W've already reached
out to the community to talk about how that is

done, but, at the sane tine, want to make it cl ear
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that the property isn't --

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: M. Harris. Sorry
to interrupt.

MR HARRI'S: Yes, sir.

CHAIR LITTLEFIELD: It's three m nutes.
The three minutes are up and | apol ogi ze, but
pl ease just finish your |ast sentence, if you
coul d.

MR HARRIS: | was just going to say we
can provide that parking, but | don't believe we
woul d be able to provide nore than that. Thank
you very much.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Ckay. Thank you.
And | have a question, if you don't mnd, on sone
of your testinony.

MR HARRI S: Sure.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: And | was foll ow ng
al ong and taking notes, but on the retail, is it
your position that you are opposed to any retail?
And the circunstances as you expl ained them are
easily and readily understood, but would you be

open to less or sone retail or maybe even a
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different retail that |ooks different than the
current type of retail people usually tal k about?

MR HARRIS: | certainly am opposed to
anyt hing that woul d be consi dered significant
retail because | just think that has no
feasibility whatsoever. Mnor retail, the problem
with that is that nost small retailers rely on
grocery anchors to bring in the tenants. And so
it is very difficult for one small retailer or two
to function in an area like this, particularly
where it's not on a nmpjor highway and not in the
m ddl e of a central business district. So, |
think work has to be done in terns of whether any
retail is really viable there.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Ckay. Thank you for
that further clarification. Comm ssioners, any
ot her questions or coments?

No, okay. Thanks agai n.

MR. HARRI'S: Thank you very nuch.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD:  Yep. Qur next
participant is Christine McGuirl from Federal

Real ty I nvestnent Trust, 909 Rose Avenue, North
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Bet hesda. Christine, are you with us? Pl ease
check -- sorry, | see --

BONI TA: |'msorry, (inaudible).

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Ckay.

BONI TA: David DeMarco shoul d be next.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Ckay, | see that
now. Thanks, Bonita. So, David DeMarco, are you
with us then from PulteG oup, 9302 Lee Hi ghway,
Fai rf ax?

VMR, DeMARCO Yes, | am

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Ckay. Wl cone and
pl ease go ahead. You have three m nutes.

MR. DeMARCO My nane's David DeMarco
and |'mvice president with Pulte Hones and |'m
testifying tonight as contract purchaser for the
Tw nbr ook Community Church property | ocated at
5906 Hal pi ne Road.

| think, as you nmay have heard, the
church is downsi zing. They no | onger need such a
| arge facility. And while | understand they are
| ooki ng for a new hone in Tw nbrook, they have

sel ected us to be contract purchaser for their
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property.

W are very excited about this
opportunity to bring sone condom ni um housi ng
options closer to the Metro in Rockville. And
we're really hoping to replicate the success we've
had i n devel opi ng and building at the Tower Qaks
community (technical inaudible) Youngentob. As
you may or not know, we have four condo buil di ngs
there and all four of them are under construction.
We're over halfway sold out and it's just been a
trenmendous success for us. And it really
i dentified what we all know, there's a trenendous
need for housing in the area.

And while there's a |ot of rental
communities, there's not a |lot of individual
condom ni um ownershi p opportunities, especially
with the type of product that we're proposing at
the Twi nbrook site, which is the sane exact
condom niuns that we're building at Tower QCaks.
These units are larger. They're designed for
downsi zers. And | would tell you for 75 percent

of our buyers are enpty-nesters, which is, you
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know, good because we don't have a | ot of inpact
on the school .

And the reason our units attract the
enpty-nester is because that they're |arge.
They're 1,550 square feet on average. And we
believe we can get two buildings at the 1-1/2 acre
site at Hal pine (inaudible) and we're | ess than
one dozen feet fromthe Metro. And as the county
and city have just determ ned, there's a need for
a thousand housing units by 2040, and we think we
can help address the need. I1t'd be a good
transition fromthe Aval on Apartnents that are
(i naudible). W are in support of the (inaudible)
residential |and use designation and we urge the
Pl anni ng Comm ssi on support the MXNC zone, which
woul d allow for this nodestly (inaudible) famly
project, which | knowit's smaller, but we had
fewer units, but they're bigger and better as |
like to refer to them

We recogni ze the need for conpatibility
and we're, you know, happy to go with -- neet wth

the county and city staff and | ook at different
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avenues we can do to address that. The MXNC

provi sion regardi ng setbacks is inconsistent with

the Conp Pl an recommendati on and we would like to

see a one-foot setback for each one foot in height
I nstead of one-foot setback for every two feet in

height. W would agree to a m ni num set back of 30
feet.

We | ook forward to working with the
staff. | will submt ny testinony for the record.
| appreciate your tinme tonight and thank you very
much. | f you have any questions, |et ne know.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Thank you, M.
DeMarco. Conm ssioners, any questions?

No, okay. Thanks again, appreciate it.
The next person on ny list is Mke Dutka of 713
Shetl and Street, Rockville.

MR, DUTKA: Hello. Can you hear ne?

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD:  Yep.

MR. DUTKA: Ckay.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Wl cone. Pl ease
proceed. You have three m nutes.

MR. DUTKA: Yeah. |'m speaking as an
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I ndi vidual and a sel f-described YIMBY or a "yes,

i n nmy backyard" person. |'m also speaking as a
lifelong resident of the City of Rockville. |
grew up in College Gardens. | think that's
Planning Area 4. And | just want to say, you
know, when ny parents bought their house there, it
was worth $125,000. Inflation adjusted, that's
$330, 000 today. Wiat their hone is actually worth
now i s $680, 000, so nore than double.

And the reason for this is because we
sinply have not built enough housing in Rockville.
W need to go nuch further. W need to be very
anbitious wth up-zoning. M ssing mddle hones
are a great creative solution. | applaud what the
Conprehensive Plan is | ooking at doing there. But
| think it needs to be pushed further. | think
densities needs to be pushed further when we have
Metro stations.

So, yeah, | think as the Pl anning
Comm ssi on, you know what needs to be done. You
need to give a good, strong starting point to the

Council and then the Council, as the el ected

Ander son Court Reporting -- 703-519-7180 -- www. ander sonreporting. net



Sept ember 23 Agenda Item 1. A Page:

37

|

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

officials, can decide what they need to do based
on what the constituents are wlling to accept.

So, that's the end of ny testinony.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Ckay. Thank you
very much, M. Dutka. Mich appreci ated.

| guess we will go to our next speaker.
And on ny list that is Maya Got hman (phonetic) of
23 Ridgefield Court, Rockville. Maya, are you
onl i ne?

SPEAKER: | think she's not here.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Sorry, | see that
al ways a second after you guys. So, next on ny
list is JimPolicaro wth Lerner Conpani es, 2000
Tower Qaks Boul evard, Rockville. Jim are you
with us?

MR, PCLICARGC |'mhere. Can you hear

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Yep. Welcone and
pl ease proceed. You have three m nutes.

MR. POLI CARO Thank you.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD:  You're wel cone.

MR, POLI CARO (Good evening. M nane is
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Jim Policaro, senior vice president of devel opnent
for Lerner Enterprises. Lerner has been
devel oping at Falls G ove for the past 15 years,
Including Falls Gove Village Retail Center,
H | ton Garden I nn and Homewood Suites, and Falls
G ove Plaza nedical office building.

Qur (technical inaudible) the Planning
Conmm ssion this past spring for the devel opnment of
a multi-famly comunity of 350 market-rate units.
The project appeared to be well received. In
June, we nade a simlar presentation to the Mayor
and Council and, again, the project appeared to be
vi ewed favorably.

The property is part of the Falls Gove
Conpr ehensi ve Pl an devel opnment and thus is zoned
PD- FG  The Conprehensive Plan appropriately
desi gnates the property as OR RN, which is
I ntended as the nost flexible m xed-use category,
allowi ng for property owners a wide choice in
m xed office, retail, and residential uses. W
concur with this recommendati on.

The Conprehensive Plan al so designates
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the property wwth retail frontage along its west
-- wth retail frontage along its west grading --
frontage and along the northern half of Research
Boul evard frontage. This designation would
require retail at this location. W do not agree
with this recommendati on and request that this
desi gnati on be elim nated.

Wil e we had concerns about this retail
designation initially, well in advance of the
COVI D- 19 pandem c, our concerns over the retail
requi renment have increased significantly given the
pandem c's acute inpact on the retail market. In
requesting that the retail designation be
el imnated we note the foll ow ng.

The retail market is struggling even in
established areas. It is self-defeating to
requi re that additional retail be added in future
devel opnents. Requiring retail likely will result
I n vacant ground fl oor space. This is not
beneficial to the project, surrounding property
owners, or the city as a whol e.

There is also a major gas |ine easenent
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which is across the entire northern frontage of
the property at GQuide Drive. Therefore, a retail
al ong Research Boul evard cannot be | ocated on the
main corner of this site. This severely limts
the opportunity for a successful retail

est abl i shnent .

For the reasons identified, we
respectfully request that you request the retail
requi renents designation in the Conprehensive
Pl an. Thank you.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Thank you very mnuch
for your comments, M. Policaro. Mich
appr eci at ed.

MR. POLI CARO.  You're wel cone.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Thank you. The next
person on ny list is Catherine Contreras of 404
Ri dge Point Place, Gaithersburg. Catherine, are
you there?

M5. CONTRERAS:. Hi.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: H . Wl cone.

M5. CONTRERAS: So, hi. M nane is

Catherine Contreras and |'m a senior at Thomas S.
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Whotton High School -- | amactively involved in
clubs Ii ke Best Buddies and sports |ike bocce and
handbal I .

When |''m not participating in club
activities or practices for sports, | am
advocating for the Americans Wth D sabilities Act
bui | ding conpliance. And | tend to have off-
canpus advocacy neetings that | attend and which
I's why parking at Rockshire is a necessity for ne
and ot her Wotton students.

Current and future Wotton students need
Rockshire for parking and it's inportant that we
recogni ze the needs of thousands of students.
Thank you.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Thank you very nuch,
Ms. Contreras, for your commrents.

Next on ny list is Christopher Yea
(phonetic), if |I'm pronouncing that correctly,
1411 Grard Street, Rockville. Christopher, are
you online? Are you with us?

SPEAKER:  Chri stopher is not present.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Not present, okay.
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Then | will go to the next person, which is Jane
Pontius, 127 South Van Buren Street, Rockville.
Jane, are you wth us?

M5. PONTIUS: Yes, | am

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Wel cone. Pl ease
proceed. You have three m nutes.

M5. PONTIUS: |'m providing testinony on
behal f of the Planning Area 4 Conm ttee regarding
t he Nei ghborhood Plan. | live at 127 South Van
Buren Street and in 1975, ny husband John and |
noved to this house where he and his brothers had
|l ived since 1952. W raised both of our sons in
this hone. And in 2010, ny son subsequently
bought the forner Oxley (phonetic) honme across the
street. |'mpresenting ny testinony on behalf of
nmy famly's longstanding ties to the West End of
Rockvi | | e.

| wish to express ny support of the plan
with the exception of the follow ng key issues
which remain: Too nmany and too | arge
I nstitutions, preservation of the |and which

surrounds historic structures, freestandi ng
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accessory dwelling units. The 2016 WECA survey of
its residents indicated that the citizens do not
want conmercial, office, or institutional uses
within the confines of the West End nei ghbor hood.
Nei t her excessive commercial or office uses are
permtted due to current zoning |aws. However,

i nstitutional usage is handl ed by the speci al
exception process, which can |lead to the
destructi on of nei ghborhoods one institutional
project at a tine.

| request that the city staff provide
nore explicit procedures for granting such uses.
This type of change inevitably results in nore
traffic, congestion, and parking demands, all of
which disrupt and interfere with the residenti al
character of the nei ghborhood.

The preservation of the |and surroundi ng
hi storical buildings is also an inportant
conponent to the planning process. It is not
enough to preserve the buildings alone, but also
t he surroundi ng open spaces and | andscapi ng

contribute to the rich historical significance of
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the site. | suggest that city staff adopt nore
specific | anguage to preserve | andscapi ng,
grounds, and setting of historic districts. Once
that land is subdivided, there is no turning back.

Finally, allow ng separate, standal one,
accessory dwelling units in the West End of
Rockville wll greatly threaten the historic
character of the neighborhood. The nunber of
separate residential structures on a |ot nust be
limted to one. A process for review ng
applications for attached accessory apartnents
needs to be created to protect the residenti al
character of a nei ghborhood. A special exception
application for this type of structure needs to be
formul ated to provide neighbors the opportunity to
coment and review the application.

Thank you for this opportunity.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Thank you, Ms.
Pontius. Mich appreciate your comrents.

The next person that | have is Noreen
Bryan, who will be speaking on behalf of the West

End Ctizens Association. Noreen, are you wth
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us?
M5. BRYAN. H . | think I'mhere. |
j ust succeeded on unnuti ng.
CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: W can hear you.
M5. BRYAN. Ckay, good. Thank you.
CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: You're wel cone. You
have five m nutes.
M5. BRYAN. Thank you nuch. Toni ght
|'"I'l be speaking relative to the Planning Area 4

Nei ghbor hood Pl an as one of the co-chairs of the

community commttee. | would like to -- there
wi Il be five speakers for the commttee; four of
themw Il follow ne.

My forenost nessage tonight is to thank
everyone who has hel ped us to update the plan.
The process began five years ago. For the first
two years, the comunity worked on its own --
Clark, we don't need that photo yet, please; thank
you -- surveilling all househol ds and drafting
initial updates of the 1981 plan. Thereafter our
commttee and city staff spent nearly two years in

bi weekly neetings honing the details. Throughout,
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resi dents had many opportunities to participate.

The result is the plan that you have
before you, one that we fully support. Thank you,
t hank you to everyone, staff and nei ghbors, who
have given so nany evenings to nmake this possible.

O the dozens of topics that the
community and staff initially viewed differently,
all have been resol ved except for the three
remai ni ng i ssues nentioned by Jane Pontius. |
w I | address each briefly and then also testify
after and we will explain themnore fully.

W' re passi onate about these issues
because we believe that additional policy is
essential to preserve the residential character of
Pl anning Area 4 and prevent transition to a
hodgepodge of uses and loss of single-famly
houses.

Preserving our residential neighborhood
was the val ue expressed nost often by respondents
to the nei ghborhood survey. W need your help to
add policies that ensure the nei ghborhood wll not

be eroded.
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It is essential to recognize that
Rockvi | | e nei ghbor hoods are not governed equal ly.
Since the 1970s, nobst new nei ghbor hoods were
created as self-contained entities with their own
rul e and governi ng honeowners associ ati ons. They
operate with covenants nore restrictive than
ci tyw de zoni ng policies.

Most HOAs prevent commercial uses,
office, and institutions, preventing cut-through
traffic and (i naudi ble) accessory dwelling units.
Today it appears that 50 percent or nore of the
residential properties in Rockville are contained
I n HOAs, such King Farm New Mark Commobns, Rose
Hll, Rose H Il Falls, et cetera. Only a small
group of the oldest communities in Rockville are
| eft without the protection afforded to HOAs.
Planning Area 4 is particularly vul nerabl e because
of its location between |-270 and Town Center.
Further, it bears the burden of nore cut-through
traffic than any other nei ghborhood in the city.

Here are the issues. Institutions, nore

than 80 percent of the respondents to the
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nei ghbor hood survey oppose having commerci al ,
office, or institutional uses replace residences.
There's protection provided in the zoning

ordi nance agai nst excessive commercial and office
uses. Institutions, as Jane nentioned, are
different. They cone into the nei ghborhood one at
atinme;, there's no limt on how nmany or where they
can be | ocat ed.

When | ooked at individually, nearly all
I nstitutions appear desirable. However, in
aggregate, to many institutions, particularly
those that are | arge and consune nany residenti al
| ots, destroy the character of a residential
nei ghbor hood.

Secondly, preserving the open | and
around historical structures, we believe that to
preserve Rockville's history, it is essential to
preserve the |l and and setting, not just the
bui | di ngs thenselves. Policy is needed to clearly
state the nei ghborhood's vision of preserving the
areas of open space in historic districts.

Nati onal and | ocal standards are not
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sufficient. Too many historic structures in D.C
and nearby Bethesda stand only a few feet from

gi ant high-rise buildings. W don't want that to
happen here. And |ooking at the current speci al
exceptions, there are many buildings that are
allowed therein to get to be 50 feet high. That
could be close to double all those little Cape Cod
houses i n the nei ghbor hood.

Freest andi ng accessor dwelling units,
nost of the land in Planning Area 4, is conposed
of single-fam |y detached housings. Respondents
who partici pated stated overwhel mngly that they
want to preserve the neighborhood as it exists
today. |If freestanding ADUs are allowed, two, not
one, dwelling unit per ot will be allowable and
single-famly housing will be a thing of the past.

The protections that we are requesting
do not cone close to those afforded HOAs. For
exanpl e, we are not actively excl uding
Institutions outright. W are asking to put caps
with (inaudible) size. W hope that you'l]l

enbrace these steps towards equalizing protections
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for all nei ghborhoods.

Thank you so nuch for your service and
your consideration. And again, thank you to
everyone how has participated in the update of the
pl ans.

| can't see the tiner, so | don't know
where we are.

CHAIR LITTLEFIELD: | think it's good
timng, you just nade it.

M5. BRYAN: Ckay.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Thank you, Ms.
Bryan, for your comments.

M5. BRYAN. Charles, may | ask one nore
thing? Patrick Wwodward is the fifth speaker here
and he may be late to this. |If he arrives |ate,
Is it possible for himto join?

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Yeah, | would
coordinate that with Bonita, who's online, but we
wll -- yeah. W also ask at the end if there's
peopl e who haven't, there may be others, but |
woul d ask to coordinate that with Bonita because |

don't handl e the technical part, but thanks for
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| etting us know.

M5. BRYAN. Thank you.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Yep. The next
person | have is Kevin Zal etsky. Kevin, are you
with us? Can you hear? Hell 0?

No. Kevin, are you unnuted?

SPEAKER: (i naudi bl e) unnuted, Kevin.

SPEAKER: He may be having techni cal
difficulty.

CHAIR LITTLEFIELD: 1'Il give him
anot her second or tws. Hello?

Ckay. | amgoing to go to the next
person on the list, who is Patricia Wodward of
111 North Van Buren, Rockville. Patricia?

M5. WOODWARD:  (Good eveni ng.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Good eveni ng.

Vel cone.

M5. WOODWARD:  Thank you.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD:  You have three
m nutes. Go ahead.

M5. WOODWARD: Good evening. |'m

Patri ci a Wbodwar d. | live on North Buren Street
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here in the historical West End. The need for the
Nei ghbor hood Pl an and the need to include policy
to preserve the settings and | andscapi ng of
historic districts thereby preventing overbuil ding
of new structures and the |loss of |and surrounding
the historic structures. Planning Area 4 is one
of the ol dest nei ghborhoods in Rockville and has
nore historic districts than any other. They are
hi ghly val ued by the community.

Bui l di ngs all by thensel ves do not tell
a site's history. They nust be seen in the
context of the surrounding -- the |l and surrounding
them For the 19th and nmuch of the 20th century,
we all know that Rockville had surrounding
countryside, large farns, vast rolling cropland
and pastures. Closer to town, the hones and
conmmuni ty buil dings, such as Rockville Acadeny,
Chest nut Lodge of which | worked there from 1964
until July of 1975, and the Beal e- Dawson House
were surrounded with sweeping |awns, dotted with
magni fi cent oaks and chestnuts. They denonstrate

how t hese schools and hotels, et cetera, worked.
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Hi storic buildings sandw ched bet ween
gi ant structures have becone the normlocally and
nationally. W've all experienced walking in city
streets, comng upon a little church or an old
post office that is | ost between 30- and 40- story
buildings. Nothing is left of the original
setting except two pieces of [awn nmaybe on each
side of the building. This is so, so sad.

The history has been relegated to
architecture and historic markers. W don't want
this to happen in Area 4. W want future
residents and visitors to have an accurate vision
of the history of these districts and how t hey
fill and it into the community. Wthout their
| andscape history, historic structures are
severely di mni shed and conprom sed.

Most of our significant historic
di stricts have already been reduced significantly.
Chest nut Lodge once owned 140 acres of |and; when
| worked there it was 100. The Beal | - Dawson
House was the center of a large plantation.

However, we are very fortunate that we have
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Chest nut Lodge and Rockvill e Acadeny and the
Beal | - Dawson House where sone of the |ands and so
forth were preserved.

However, w thout policy in the
Nei ghborhood Plan it's highly likely that these
open spaces and | andscapes still could be |ost or
greatly dimnished. The historic national, state,
and | ocal standards do not protect the --

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Ms. Wodward, |'m
sorry, three mnutes is up. Please finish that
| ast sentence, though.

M5. WOODWARD: Ch, okay, thank you very
much. Only then can we preserve our history if we
go wth what we ask. The committee is --

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Ckay, that's good.

M5. WOODWARD:  Thank you very nuch for
| i st eni ng.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Thank you. And
apol ogies for --

V5. WOODWARD:  And we | ook forward to --

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Yep. Thank you very

much.
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M5. WOODWARD:  Goodni ght .

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Yep. Take care and
sorry we have to have a limt, but we have to
stick to it.

The next person on ny list is Margaret
Magner .

M5. MMGNER: Hi. Did |l successfully
unnut e?

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD:  Yes.

M5. MAGNER: Excel | ent.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: You did and we can
hear you very well.

M5. MAGNER: Thank you.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Wel cone and go
ahead. You have three m nutes.

M5. MAGNER: Thank you.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD:  Yep.

M5. MAGNER: My testinony addresses the
need to include policy on accessory dwelling units
in the Planning Area 4 Nei ghborhood PI an.
Planning Area 4 is conposed prinmarily of

single-famly residences. The Nei ghborhood Pl an
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survey shows that PA 4 residents desire above all
to preserve the conposition of the nei ghborhood.
This value is a guiding principle of the PA 4

pl an.

To achieve this, policy needs to be
added to the plan setting standards on ADUs.
Cityw de policy as expressed in Volune | of the
Conpr ehensi ve Pl an does not apply to nei ghborhoods
governed by HOAs, which is 50 percent or nore of
the residential land in Rockville. ADU policy
that is allegedly citywide actually targets only a
handf ul of nei ghborhoods. These are Pl anning Area
4 and the other ol der nei ghborhoods with deep
backyar ds.

Each of these nei ghborhoods deserves to
have its own ADU policies that sustain it's unique
characteristics and conmunity values. Here is why
ADU policy is needed for Planning Area 4
(techni cal inaudible) often becones a rented
apartnent or an Airbnb when the property changes
hands and new owners nove into a main house. The

substanti al backyards of PA 4 will be gone if
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second dwellings are built there, resulting in the
renoval of a large percentage of the mature trees
I n the nei ghborhood, the degradation of the

ecol ogy, elimnation of habitat for birds and
wildlife, and destruction of the park-like quality
of PA 4.

Al |l ow ng a second house per |ot would
further incentivize tear-down and mansi oni zati on
as devel opers seek to maxim ze profits with two
houses on one |ot. This would destroy rather than
preserve the range of housing we have in PA 4,
whi ch has many small houses built after World War
1.

Provi di ng af f ordabl e housi ng t hrough
ADUs in PA 4 is a nyth. Property owners woul d
seek to maxim ze the return froma freestandi ng
ADU. Qur initial investigation indicates that the
rental rates would be out of the range of
af f ordabl e housing. Allow ng accessory apartnents
I n existing residences or in addition would be
beneficial, as long as there are standards to

preserve the single-famly character of PA 4
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streets and keep them from bei ng overburdened wth
par ked cars.

We have prepared draft policy | anguage
on ADUs that we recomrend for inclusion in the PA
4 plan. W hope that you will support the need
for this policy. It is essential for our
nei ghborhood to continue as the comunity of
single-famly honmes and green park-I|ike spaces
that our residents have strongly stated they w sh
to maintain.

Thank you for your dedication and your
wi I lingness to hear and support the citizens who
live in PA 4.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Thank you, Ms.
Magner, for your testinony. Mich appreciated.

W have sone pre-regi stered speakers,
four in arow, | guess, that are not on mne. So,
| think that the next person on the list is
Deborah Landau. Deborah, are you online? Are you
Wi th us?

M5. LANDAU. | am Can you hear ne?

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD:  Yep. Wl cone.
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M5. LANDAU. Thank you so nuch and good
eveni ng.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Good eveni ng. You
have five mnutes. You're here for ERCA, correct?

M5. LANDAU. Erica? Oh, ERCA, yeah,
sorry.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: ERCA, sorry.

MS. LANDAU. Yes.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: East Rockville Civic
Associ ati on.

M5. LANDAU. Correct, and thank you for
the introduction. | amindeed the president of
the East Rockville Cvic Association. And |I'm
here to provide our comments and feedback on this
2040 Conprehensive Draft Pl an.

We very nmuch appreciate all the work the
city has done to prepare this Conprehensive Plan
and the efforts by the city staff to give us
opportunities to understand its contents. W also
very nmuch appreciate the changes that were nade to
this draft plan reflecting our comments on the

previ ous version. Thank you.
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| n general, ERCA supports the new
residential attached zoning in East Rockville with
the follow ng exceptions. ERCA does not support
the RA zone stretching down one full block into
Readi ng Terrace, Hi ghland Avenue, Croydon Avenue,
and on the corner of 1st Street and Veirs MII.
ERCA i nstead woul d support the RA zone change
reaching down two or three lots from South
St onestreet Avenue, but no further.

It should be explicitly stated in the
pl an that the East Rockville design guidelines
currently under developnent will apply to this new
RA zone. W' ve worked really hard with the city
and are very, very excited about these guidelines
and we hope that they wll be kept.

Specifically in the plan, under the
Ur ban Design section on page 23, Area 5, the
fourth bullet under "Neighborhood Content" says,
"Mature trees and tree canopy shoul d be
prioritized and preserved." W feel very strongly
that this needs to be a nust. Mature trees and

tree canopy nust be prioritized and preserved.

Ander son Court Reporting -- 703-519-7180 -- www. ander sonreporting. net



Sept ember 23 Agenda Item 1. A Page:

61

1

2

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

And this doesn't nean replacing themwth
seedl i ngs.

Movi ng down under "Building Fornt on the
sane page, the first bullet says, "New residenti al
attached buil di ngs shoul d be proportional in
hei ght, mass, and scale with adjacent hones."

This al so needs to be a nust. New residenti al
attached buil di ngs nust be proportional in height,
mass, and scale with adjacent hones.

Next bullet, "Wen adjacent to a | ower
scal ed structure, a graduate transition should be
utilized." Again, this needs to be a nust, a
gradual transition nust be utilized.

And finally, the third point, "Side
el evati ons shoul d i ncl ude wi ndows of consi stent
proportion and placenent as the front el evation
and | arge, blank walls should be avoided." Large,
bl ank wal | s nust be avoi ded.

| woul d al so encourage the Pl anni ng
Comm ssion to make sure that they read previous
coments fromthe earlier drafts, many of which |

think would still be relevant to this version.
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And that's all I've got. Thank you so
much for your tinme and consideration on this
really inpressive Conprehensive Pl an.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Thank you very nuch,
Ms. Landau, for your comments. Muich appreciate
t hat .

Let's see, the next person on ny list is
Lauren Povich of 331 --

M5. POVICH  Okay, that's another
(i naudi ble) | can get it.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Hel | 0?

M5. POVICH  Oh, hello?

CHAIR LITTLEFIELD: Hello. H. 1Is this
Lauren Povi ch?

M5. POVICH |'ma Wotton student. |'m
a sophonore and | was -- | would |like to advocate
for the Rockshire parking to be open for us
because a | ot of us need parking. And ne,
specifically, I'"'mon the field hockey team and |
just ama part of these few clubs. And after
school, a lot of the tines the activity bus

doesn't cone at the sane tines, so a |l ot of us
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need to, like, park and be able to get hone. And
| know that a | ot of people who have parents that
are divorced are -- don't have a bus |ocation at
one of their houses, so they need to be able to
drive.

Thank you.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Thank you very mnuch
for providing your coments on the parking.

Let's see, the next on ny list is
Jasm ne Gong (phonetic) of 11638 Pl easant Meadow,
North Potonmac. Jasmine, are you online? Can you
hear us?

MR. LARSON. Ckay, per Bonita's nessages

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Ch, sorry.

MR. LARSON. -- she and Marilyn
(phonetic) may not be present. Jaime Mrris?

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: | keep m ssing
those. Too many things on ny screen at once, two
screens.

MR. LARSON. |'m here for you.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD:  You're hel pi ng ne.
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Ckay, so, next speaker then wll be Jaime Mirris
of --

M5. MORRIS: Hi.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: -- 14004 Natia Manor
in North Potomac. Jaim e, can you hear us?

M5. MORRIS: Yes. Can you hear ne?

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Yep, we can. Pl ease
proceed. You have three mnutes to provide us
Wi th your comments.

M5. MORRI'S: Thank you.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: You're wel cone.

M5. MORRIS: H. [I'mJaime Mrris and
|"'mtestifying on behalf of the hundreds of
students at Wotton that wi sh to have parKking.
|"ma junior at Whotton Hi gh School and |I'm al so
on the Whotton Cheer Team and bei ng a student
athlete | stay after school a lot and for neetings
and practices. And also on behalf of the other
students, | know that they want the opportunity to
stay after for clubs and school help.

There are not enough parking spots in

the lot for every licensed student to have a spot.
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And al so, | know that all the spots are dedi cated
to the students, so when parents need to pick up
students there aren't spots for themto park. So,
Rockshire, the parking there is very nuch
appr eci at ed.

| just would Iike you guys to take into
consi deration the student parking at Rockshire for
now and for the future when planning this out.
So, thank you.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Thank you very much,
Jaime, for your comments on our plan.

The next speaker that | have -- there's
actually two, so | would ask staff id there's a
clarification on this or if there are two -- if it
shoul d be two separate people speaking. But it's
Vi ctor Hernandez (phonetic) and Petra G unvel dt
(phonetic). Are we having two people or is this
just one or the other?

SPEAKER: |'msorry, they're not online.
Jennifer Tinmmck is next.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Ckay, the next two.

Al right. Jennifer Timmck of 4 West Argyle
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Street. Jennifer, are you online? Can you hear

us?
M5. TIMMCK: Yes, | am
CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: H . Wl cone.
M5. TIMMCK: Can you --
CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Yep, we can. Pl ease
go ahead.
M5. TIMM CK: Thank you, |I'mglad to.
CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD:  You have three
m nut es.

M5. TIMMCK: | have been a part of the
Comm ttee of Residents working on the update for
Pl anni ng Area 4 since Decenber 2015. | wanted to
take a nmonent to acknow edge sone of the people on
this commttee who've put an amazi ng anount of
work and tinme into preparing a draft of the
pl anning area, fromcreating and inplenenting the
survey to conpiling the results, then witing a
conpl etely new planning areas draft, presenting
that to neighbors, and revising it based on their
I nput .

The comm ttee co-chairs are Judge
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Patrick Whodward and Ms. Noreen Bryan. O her
menbers of the commttee who worked on this

proj ect include Dennis Kane, Warren Crutchfield,
may he rest in peace, Eric Fulton, Jack Jellen
(phonetic), Larry G ammop, Nancy Pickard, Ken
Sonner, Patricia Wodward, and Kevin Zal etsky. |
am honored to have worked with such a dedi cated
and smart group of people.

This commttee conpleted a draft of
Pl anning Area 4 and submtted it to city staff in
Decenber 2017. Starting the next spring, we began
to neet wth nenbers of city staff for about an
hour and a half to two hours every two weeks.
During these neetings we discussed in detail al
the topics, elenents, issues, policies,
reconmendati ons, everything.

Over the next year and a half, commttee
nmenbers and city staff nanaged to conme together
and agree on nearly all of the draft that you have
now for Planning Area 4. There were only a few
areas where we still disagree.

While many different staff nenbers
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attended our neetings at tines, we worked nostly
closely with G ndy Kebba and Dave Levy, who were
t here al nost every other week. C ndy and Dave
were al ways professional. They were willing to
work hard. They listened to our ideas, discussed
differing opinions, did research, cane back wth
answers, and nmade sonme conprom ses. | amvery
grateful for the many, many hours both C ndy and
Dave devoted to our planning area and for their
Wi llingness to work with us to produce a draft
that clearly states the desires of planning areas
resi dents.

One area that's still difficult is the
section regarding institutional uses. Planning
Area 4 residents do not want to see the expansion
of large institutions in their nei ghborhood and
t he plan you have shoul d protect them fromthat.

On page 46 of this draft, the fourth
bul | et under "Policies" says that you should "seek
standards that establish nmaxi num acreage," and
then it continues you should "review and anend

ot her standards."” |t gives you all great ideas of
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things to do, but | would say rather than just
seek new standard or review and anend exi sting
standards, the plan should right here and there
actual ly define those standards to acconplish the
goal s.

| support the standards described by the
Pl anning Area 4 Conmttee, specifically no nore
than one institution per block, no nore than one
acre in total area, and no further expansion of
total [and use.

Thank you very nuch for this tine
t oni ght.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Thank you for your
comments, Ms. Tinmm ck.

Let's see, next on ny list is N ck Jones
of 9907 Lanbertina Lane. Nick, are you there?

MR. JONES: (inaudible) can you hear ne?

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Yep, we can.
Wl cone.

MR. JONES: Thank you. So thank you,
M. Chai rman and respected nenbers of the board.

| am Nick Jones, a junior from Thomas S. Wotton
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Hi gh School. And | am advocating not only on
behal f of nyself, but for ny fell ow students and
the effort to retain Rockshire parking for Wotton
st udent s.

Students rely on these spots day-in and
day-out for so many reasons. Personally, ny
parents are separated and ny father |ives out of
the district, making driving a necessity.

Mor eover, ny nother, who lives in the district,
lives in a neighborhood called The WI I ows, which
fromny house is exactly two and a half m es.
That's two and a half mles and the county does
not offer a single bus to ny nei ghborhood since
part of the nei ghborhood is wthin Mntgonery
County's two-mle range that they say is perfectly
fine for wal ki ng di stance.

Wth both of ny parents working
full-tinme and the inability to drive nyself for
the first two years of school, | was forced to
wal k through frigidly icy days to downpours that
flood the streets. Nowthat I'mfinally a junior

with ny Iicense, | thought those days were over
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until | heard about the county's decision to

possi bly take away the Rockshire parking.
Rockshire parking would not only allow ne to drive
nysel f, but drive others who haven't been given
the opportunity to get a ride to school.

My only ask is that if you aren't going
to supply the transportation, at |east supply the
par ki ng so those fortunate enough can drive those
who can't. Sorry, those who either do not have
their license or cannot get it for one reason or
anot her. W deserve our spots.

| want to thank you guys for your tine
and your effort. Bye.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Thank you, N ck. W
appreci ate your comments about the parking and the
nice words for our effort.

The next person | have, Kevin Zal et sky.
Kevin, are you online?

MR. ZALETSKY: Yeah, hi. Can you hear

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD:  Yep, we can.

MR. ZALETSKY: Ckay, great. Well, thank
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you very much.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD. Go ahead and
wel cone.

MR. ZALETSKY: Yeah, pardon ne for that
technical difficulty.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: No probl em

MR. ZALETSKY: So, ny nane's Kevin
Zal etsky. | live at 101 North Street. |'ve been
a Rockville resident for nore than 16 years. Most
of that time |'ve been an active nenber of the
West End Citizens Association, to include serving
as a nenber of the Planning Area 4 Nei ghbor hood
Pl anning Commttee for the |ast four years.
Tonight | wanted to address the need to include
policy in the Neighborhood Plan to prevent the
encroachnent of too many or too | arge of
Institutions into the nei ghborhoods.

As you know, Planning Area 4 is one of
t he ol dest nei ghborhoods in Rockville, has nore
hi storic structures and districts than any ot her.
You wal k down our streets, you're net by a

progression of largely single-famly hones that
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invite children to play on the sidewal ks,

nei ghbors to converse as they wal k their dogs, and
a general sense of peace away from urban
congesti on.

By contrast, nost of us have experienced
wal king in towns where residential streets have
becone i sl ands of individual houses squeezed
anongst nonresidential buildings that dom nate
them These streets have lost irrevocably the
cohesi veness and friendliness of a residential
communi ty.

Over time, Planning Area 4 has anmssed a
greater percentage of |and devoted to institutions
t han al nost any ot her nei ghborhood in Rockville.
Due to their conveni ence | ocations, the areas of
buddi ng H ghway 270 at West Montgonery Avenue and
Fall s Road are particularly at risk. In these
areas institutions occupy nore than half the
avai l able land. The residential character of
t hese nei ghborhoods is already significantly
conprom sed.

One of only 10 primary guiding
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principles delineated in our Neighborhood Pl an
states, "Limt the expansion of comercial and
Institutional uses." This principle is not
arbitrary. It was drawn directly froma

conpr ehensi ve nei ghbor hood survey conducted in
2016. In this survey our nei ghborhoods
overwhel m ngly, nore than 80 percent of 500
househol ds that responded, indicated that they
opposed repl aci ng residences with commerci al and
I nstitutional uses.

I n that sane survey, when nei ghbors were
asked what do you |ike |east about your
nei ghbor hood, traffic was the nunber one response.
Wt hout appropriate l[imtations on their nunber
and size, institutions wll continue to add nore
parked cars and traffic to our already congested
streets.

Qur nei ghborhoods are protected from
comrerci al expansi on through | and use desi gnati ons
and zoning. Simlar protections do not exist for
I nstitutions which enter the nei ghborhoods one at

a time via special exceptions with guidelines that
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are largely arbitrary and subjecti ve.

Currently, there's no limt on the total
| and that can be used for institutions or other
limtations on an institution's size or footprint.
When considered one at a tine, nost institutions
appear reasonabl e are approved. But together,
however, too many institutions or excessively
| arge ones threaten to destroy the integrity of
Pl anning Area 4 as a residential neighborhood.

Rockvi | | e nei ghbors take great pride in
the institutions that currently exist in our
nei ghbor hoods. These churches, schools, shelters,
nur si ng honmes, nuseuns, and nmany ot her services
grew organically with our community and are part
of the rich tapestry of our lives. They have a
scal e and size that harnonizes with the
residential structures around them were built to
serve the imedi ate community, not as a draw to
significant volunes of transient traffic from
ot her locations. Reasonable |[imtations on the
expansi on of the nunber and size of institutions

can keep these cherished nei ghborhood services

Ander son Court Reporting -- 703-519-7180 -- www. ander sonreporting. net



Sept ember 23 Agenda Item 1. A Page:

76

|

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

from becom ng our greatest nei ghborhood threats.

W' ve prepared draft policies regarding
I nstitutions that we recommend for inclusion in
the plan. Hope that you'll support the need for
this policy to preserve Planning Area 4's historic
and residential character. Thank you very nuch.
| appreciate it.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Thank you, M.
Zal et sky. And | have a question for you, if
t hat' s okay.

MR. ZALETSKY: Sure, of course.

CHAIR LITTLEFIELD: And in a way |
apol ogi ze because it just popped into ny head and
| believe others have spoken in a simlar vein as
you just did and one the sane topic. So, anyone
| i stening, you know, you can always send witten
testinony. But | do want to clarify on what |'ve
been heari ng.

So, it seens that sonme peopl e have
spoken out agai nst the advancenent or
proliferation of institutions in Planning Area 4.

My question is, does that nean that you would
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support a reduction? So, if institutions over
tinme were to change use and becone residential or
housi ng, woul d that be sonething that you're al so
in favor of or is it just that you are okay wth
the existing anmount, but would like to see -- not
see it expand.

MR, ZALETSKY: Sure. So, speaking from
the discussions that we had in the Planning Area 4
Comm ttee, you know, an underlying thene has
al ways been that we'd be happy to further return
to, you know, to residences of any of the
properties. So, and | think the underlying zoning
for alot of these institutions is single-famly
residential. So, if they were to | eave, we woul d
be (technical inaudible).

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Thank you very nuch.
Appreciate it.

MR, ZALETSKY: No problem Thank you.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: You're wel cone. The
next speaker | have on the list is Rhoda
Ndj oukouo, if |'ve said that correctly, of 10505

Bounty Cove Court, Gaithersburg.
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M5. NDJOUKOQUO. H . Can you hear ne?

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Hello. Yes, we can.
Vel cone.

M5. NDJOUKOQUO. Ckay. Good eveni ng,
Chair, nenbers, and people of the board. M nane
I s Rhoda Ndj oukouo and |'m here on behal f of
Whotton Hi gh School Commttee and |'mal so part of
Wotton SGA;, |I'm secretary. Thank you so nuch for
having ne and this opportunity to speak out and
share ny views about the Rockshire planning.

So, the Rockshire parking |ot neans a
|l ot to us Whotton students. You know, as Wotton
students in the Wotton comunity we park there a
lot, like, for school and for after school, as
they say. For ne as a senior and junior, you
know, we have internships and interviews we go to
I n and out during school and after school and we
need these parking |ots because our school parking
| ots aren't big enough to fit all our students
that have |licenses, so we really need --
Rockshire's really there for us to park.

Al so, as SGA, we also hold all sorts of
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events, |ike after-school events, |ike dances and
stuff like that, and we need our students to cone
and, you know, be able to park their cars and be
| i ke, you know, having to show that they have a
place to park to conme to these school events.

And, you know, parking can al so seem

| i ke we don't want to -- we want to have Rockshire
there so students won't have to, like, park in the
nei ghbor hoods next to Rockshire, so they'll have

par ki ng at Rockshire to part at.

So, yeah, | hope you guys, you know,
take us into consideration while planning and you
guys, you know, think of us students because this
par ki ng does really nean a lot to us and parKking
here, and taking this away would really be hard
for us to have a place to park at school because
we do have the right to park sonewhere and attend
school. And again, if these places -- if the
transportation's not provided, we need at |east
parking for these |icensed students to, you know,
park at and go to school.

Thank you so nuch for your tinme. And,
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yeah, thank you.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Thank you, Rhoda,
for taking the tinme to provide us your comments.

M5. NDIJOUKOQUO:  Mm hmm

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: The next person on
my list is Nancy Pickard of 29 Courthouse Square.
And Nancy is representing Peerless Rockville, so
wll have five mnutes of tine. Nancy, are you
online with us?

M5. PICKARD: | am Can you hear ne?

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Yep, we can.
Wel cone and go ahead. You have five m nutes.

M5. PICKARD: Al right, great. Thank
you, Chairman Littlefield, and greetings to all
t he nenbers of the Pl anning Conm ssi on.

| "' m Nancy Pickard, but | am speaking to
you toni ght as executive director of Peerless
Rockville Hi storic Preservation. | welcone the
opportunity to address you this evening and we are
happy to provide input on Volune Il of the Draft
Conpr ehensi ve Pl an, and express our appreciation

of your role in the Conprehensive Master Pl an
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process and for our inclusion and involvenent in
it, as well. This is an extrenely conpl ex,
detailed, and vitally inportant docunment and we
commend the staff for their many, many hours, in
fact years of hard work.

Peerl ess Rockville is particularly
pl eased to see the inclusion of plans and goal s
for some of our nost significant historic
properties. W will be submtting a detail ed
witten response to Volune II, but tonight I wll
present sone general coments that are applicable
in certain focus areas and cityw de.

We have fully understanding that this
pl an was designed to guide future growmh in the
city and, as such, it acts as a tool to guide
pl anning for continuity, change, and growth as
stated in Land Use Policy 1 in Volune I. To neet
future growth and community needs the plan targets
areas for new residential housing types with
hi gher density and new zoning. The change in
grow h areas are highlighted throughout the plan.

Tonight we would like to bring a bit of attention
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to areas not explicitly targeted for grow h,
particularly our historic and ol der residenti al
communi ti es.

W note that nine planning areas report
residents' concerns for preserving the character
of their single-famly residential neighborhood.
| ssues such as mansi oni zation, the renovation or
repl acenent of original honmes wth structures that
dwarf the comunity, al so appear to be a concern.

Yet these citizen concerns acconpany a
Draft Conprehensive Plan that enphasizes
multi-fam |y housing devel opnent, redevel opnent,
and plans to permt an accessory dwelling unit on
every property. W see little in the way of
concrete regulations or policies for protecting
exi sting community character and/or the settings
for historic properties.

Nei ghbor hood character enconpasses
vari ous aspects of site and environnent reflecting
t he shape and size of buildings, materials,
craftsmanshi p, spaces features. Preserving this

character refers to nore than sinply architecture.
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Al t hough exi sting and | ong-established buil ding
types and patterns are central, the alignnents of
bui | dings, the relationships to streets and
si dewal ks, tree planting, accessory buil di ngs,
U-sheds (phonetic), and | andscaping all contribute
to the character that creates nei ghborhood
identity. Changes to nei ghborhood character in
hi storic and conservation districts requires
sensitivity, but these features remain inportant
to all nei ghborhoods throughout the city.

W note that in sone areas, such as Area
4, there is increasing pressure from devel opnent
and encroachnent of nonresidential offices and
grow ng institutions. Concrete regulations and
gui delines need to be put in place to ensure
protection of our existing comunities, and we
call upon the Pl anning Conmm ssion to strengthen
t hese protections, particularly from expandi ng
office, institutional, and retail growh. One
opportunity to respond to citizens' concerns |ies
in the inplenentati on of nei ghborhood desi gn

gui del i nes, docunents that will establish
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architectural standards and direct us within the
city's uni que nei ghbor hood.

Peerl ess Rockville wants to express
strong reservations about the inpacts of Land Use
Policy 2.3, which permits an ADU on every
residential property in the city, particularly
when resident feedback strongly states a
preference to preserve the character of those
single-unit, detached residential housing. This
policy is currently unclear, |acks specifics, and
appears to disproportionately affect ol der areas
of the city already facing devel opnent pressures
and ot her inpacts. Wile Peerless Rockville
agrees in concept with ADUs and supports increased
af f ordabl e housi ng and m ssing m ddl e housi ng,
permtting blanket ADUs wi |l increase housing, but
of fers no guarantees regarding affordability. W
bel i eve the community should be provided with nore
detai |l ed gui delines and policies before permtting
such a nonunental change to Rockville's
nei ghbor hoods.

The health and vitality of Rockville
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Town Center renmains a pressing issue in the city.
Proposed increases in retail in an area where
retail currently struggles requires careful
deci si on- maki ng. Redevel opnent plans on North
Washi ngton Street abutting established
nei ghbor hood nust be sensitive to the size and
scal e and character. W hope to see the
redevel opnent in Area 1 that focuses on commerci al
vi brancy and connection between Town Center and
nei ghbor hoods across 355, which wll increase
accessibility to business and safe travel north
and east in an area where current retail space
offers a fruitful m xed-use devel opnent rat her
t han westward towards nei ghbor hoods and
single-fam |y housing.

| know |I' m about out of tine, so | have
one | ast thought and that is just that we really
do appreciate the acknow edgenent of needed
research and publicity of existing preservation
districts as well as better policies. And we are
very encouraged to see future intentions for King

Farm Lincoln H gh School, and new boundaries for
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Dawson Farm Pack -- Park. Sorry.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: That's okay.

M5. Pl CKARD: Thank you so much for
| i stening tonight.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Thank you, Ms.
Pi ckard. Much appreciate your comments on behal f
of Peerl ess Rockville.

The next speaker that | have is Brian
Shipley at 211 South WAshi ngton Street, Rockville.
Brian, are you with us? Are you connected?

MR. SHI PLEY: Can you hear ne?

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD:  Yep, yep, we can.
Vel cone.

MR. SHI PLEY: Good evening. M nane is
Brian Shipley and |'m providing testinony on
Planning Area 4. |'ve been an officer, either
presi dent or vice president, of the Wst End
Citizens Association for nore than two years and
participated in the biweekly neetings with the
city staff to finalize the Planning Area 4
Nei ghbor hood Pl an in 2018 and ' 19.

| want to nmake sure that the Pl anning
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Comm ssion is aware that the devel opnent of the
Pl anning Area 4 plan has been a community effort
fromthe ground up. W recognize that our 1989
Nei ghbor hood Pl an was sorely out of date and as an
appendi x to the Master Plan was |argely a | ost
docunment. It was rarely referenced. W knew t hat
the future of our nei ghborhood depended on having
a nei ghborhood plan that was recogni zed as policy
by everyone: Devel opers, governnent officials,
and residents.

Thr oughout our own pl anni ng process we
have sought to build out plan on the views and
val ues of the residents. And to acconplish this,
we surveyed the households in the West End. Once
the survey was conplete and to ensure our planning
process renai ned public, we discussed the status
of our plan at nonthly WECA neetings and at our
annual general nmenbership neetings that are open
to all residents. So, before these public
heari ngs, residents have had many opportunities to
express their views and shape our Nei ghborhood

Pl an.
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As Rockville continues to grow and
becone an urban center, we knew how t he residents
of the Planning Area 4 feel about preserving the
character of the neighborhood. And as we have
heard from others who have testified this evening,
Pl anni ng Area 4 residents overwhelmngly desire to
preserve the single-famly residenti al
nei ghbor hood that exists today. The survey data
supports residents' desires. W knew our
Nei ghbor hood Pl an needed to be clear and provide
protections that do not currently exist.

As Rockville is urbanizing, pressure to
expand comercial and institutional uses into the
nei ghborhood is increasing. Comunities wth HOAs
have covenants that protect themfromthis
happening. Planning Area 4 has none. W hope
that you will support the protections incorporated
into our Draft Plan and will support the
additional policies for institutions, open spaces
In historic districts, and freestandi ng accessory
dwel ling units.

Qur new nei ghbor hoods with HOAs have far
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greater protections fromtraffic and the
encroachnent of nonresidential uses. This has put
nore traffic on our streets and an unbal anced
pressure for devel opnent in Planning Area 4 and

ot her ol der nei ghborhoods. Through our

Nei ghbor hood Pl an and t he proposed additi onal
policies we're hoping to preserve our existing
residential character through increased
protections and leveling the playing field with
HOAs.

Thank you very nuch.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Thank you, M.
Shi pl ey, for your comments.

The next person, | believe we skipped
one person, so we are at Hyun Kim Hyun, are you
onl i ne?

M5. KIM Yes, | am

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Hell o and wel cone.
You have three m nutes.

M5. KIM Thank you.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD:  You're wel cone.

M5. KIM Good evening. Thank you for
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the opportunity to address you today on behal f of
t he Korean Presbyterian Church of Rockville. W
are located at 800 Hurley Avenue, next to the
Rockshi re Shopping Center.

My nane is Hyun Kimand | have been a
menber of the church for the past 13 years. And
| ' m speaking to you today because we appreciate
being included in the plan as a consideration and
we needed to inpart on this Planning Comm ssion
how we will be directly inpacted by its decisions
and recommendati ons. The very exi stence and
conti nued operations of the church will be
determ ned by how the redevel opnent will take into
account our church's need for additional parking
spaces.

Fromits inception, the Rockshire
community provided for a religious institutional
presence. |In 1980, Tenple Beth Am built the
synagogue at 800 Hurley Avenue. And as a
synagogue, clearly net a need of the community.

It grew and soon needed to expand. |In 1986,

Tenpl e Beth Ami renodel ed to expand the buil ding

Ander son Court Reporting -- 703-519-7180 -- www. ander sonreporting. net



Sept ember 23 Agenda Item 1. A Page:

91

1

2

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

and, in doing so, did not have enough parKking
spaces to accommpdate its grow ng congregati on.

Fromthat tine, it entered into a
| i cense agreenent with then-| easehol der GFS. GFS
| eased and operated the G ant in the shopping
center next to the synagogue and granted use of
t he 40 parking spaces on its parking |ot at no
cost. These parking spaces were to bused in
conjunction with the Rockshire sw mm ng pool, who
had been using the sane spaces since 1977.

Then in 1998, our church, KPCR, took
over occupyi ng the synagogue and noved into the
nei ghbor hood and have been calling it honme for the
past 22 years. Since then, we have opened our
doors to neets the needs of the community when
able. The community has in the past used our
church to hold neetings and we all ow Whotton Hi gh
School students to park in front of our building.

Qur church bought the building only with
t he understandi ng that we were going to be able to
use the additional parking spaces. Wthout the

accommodati on of these additional parking spaces,
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our church will not be able to operate as the
limted spaces in front of the building will not
be sufficient to accommbdate the congregation and,
in effect, nmaintain a permt to keep its door
open.

Since 1977, the additional spaces that
GFS | eased free of charge allowed for the
community to provide a necessary service. The
addi tional parking spaces are vital to not just
t he continued operation of our church, but also
for the continued presence of the sw nm ng pool
and assisting in alleviating the overcrowdi ng and
neeting the needs of our high school students, as
you' ve heard so many fromtoday. Therefore, we
ask that you ensure desperately needed parking
when redevel opi ng the Rockshire comunity.

Thank you for your attention and
consi der ati on.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Thank you, Hyun, for
your coments. W appreciate those.

The next four people on ny list are

apparently not present, although |I was advi sed
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that we do have one nore person who would like to
-- who's online and would like to speak. It's
Kaitlyn (phonetic), but I don't have a | ast nane
and I'mnot sure if -- Kaitlyn, are you here?

M5. MGUIRL: It looks |ike mne was
unnuted, but this is Christine MCGQuirl.

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Ch, okay. So, |
don't have -- Christine, | don't have you on ny
list, but I think that's -- I'"mnot -- oh, yes,
you were signed up earlier and you' re now here.
So, you're wth Federal Realty Investnment Trust?

M5. MGU RL: Yes.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: GCkay. Well, go
ahead then and wel cone. And sorry for the bit of
conf usi on, but --

M5. McGU RL: Thank you so nuch.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Thank you and you
have three m nutes.

M5. McGQU RL: So, ny nane is Christine
MGuirl. |'ma devel opnent director with Federal
Realty I nvestnent Trust, the owner of 12 North

Washi ngton Street. And as you know, Feder al
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Realty is also the owner of a large portion of
Town Square and thus we have a particul ar interest
In ensuring the long-termviability and vitality
of the Town Center and the surrounding area. This
goal, however, is a shared goal, one which is in
the best interest of the city, the residents, and
the visitors to downtown Rockville.

|"m here this evening to testify in
support of the Draft Conprehensive Plan
reconmendations to rezone the property to MXCD.
We echo the sentinents of our neighbor, Steve
VanGrack, who you heard fromtwo weeks ago during
the Septenber 9th public hearing. The 12 North
Washi ngton property is currently inproved with
37,000 square feet of retail that for many years,
wel | before COVID, has struggled to survive.
Surface parking fronts the building on North
Washi ngton Street and West M ddl e Lane, nmaking it
difficult to create an appealing streetscape.

The zoni ng change in accordance with the
Conpr ehensi ve Pl an recomendation will help

encourage the redevel opnent of the property as
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wel |l as the surrounding properties that share the
sanme reconmmendati on, and provi de needed
residential uses. These residential uses will in
turn help to support the Town Center.

Just over a year ago, ULl conducted an
assessnment of Town Center with the goal of
provi di ng nmeani ngful reconmendati ons to strengthen
the area's vitality. One of the specific
questions that ULl panel posed was, is the
devel opnent density and | and use m x, both
exi sting and expected, sufficient to support a
strong retail environnent?

The ULI panel's answer was clear: The
density in the Town Center should be increased
w t hout conprom sing character. The panel
recogni zed that a critical mass was just that,
critical to supporting the Town Center.

A nunber of years ago, Federal Realty
eval uat ed redevel oping 12 North Wshi ngt on
property to provide nulti- famly housing, but it
was not econom cal ly viable under the existing

MXNC- MXT zoning. As the Draft Conprehensive Pl an
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recommendation for the west side of North

Washi ngton Street recogni zed, the devel opnent
standards of the MXCD zone allow for sufficient
density to nake residential devel opnent feasible
I n a manner conpati ble with surroundi ng areas.

W encourage the Planning Comm ssion to
support the reconmmendati ons of the Conprehensive
Plan for this area. Thank you.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Thank you, Ms.
McGQuirl. Appreciate your testinony about the Town
Cent er.

| think that exhausts ny |ist of
pre-registered participants. |'magoing to ask
city staff if there's anyone else that's signed on
since or wasn't here and is now here and woul d
| i ke to speak.

Bonita? d ark?

MR. LARSON. | just asked Bonita the
sanme thing. |'mnot sure.
BONI TA: |I'msorry. Yes, everyone has

spoken. There was one --

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD:  Ckay.
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BONI TA: -- who called in, but she's
al ready accounted for.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Ckay. So,
everybody's accounted for. Well, then | guess
t hat concl udes our second and final public
testi nony on the Conprehensive Plan, Volune |1:
Pl anni ng Areas, at |east the virtual testinony.
But for all those listening, I'll repeat what |
said at the beginning. Qur public record, we
voted at our last neeting to keep our public
record open until October 7th, 5 p.m, | believe,
so that's another couple weeks to provide us
testinony in witing, and we are actually
encouragi ng that. W prefer that sinply because
we're not in normal tinmes and we're doi ng an okay
job, | think, right now with our virtual Pl anning
Comm ssi on neetings, but certainly it would be
beneficial to have -- to nake sure we've heard
fromeverybody to have that testinony in witing,
as wel | .

So, with that --

BONITA: I'msorry to interrupt you. |
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notice that we did have one person just -- it
| ooks I'i ke they junped on, Patrick Wodward, |
think his last nane is. | don't have the --
Whodward, yes. He was on the |ist before, but
wasn't avail able (technical inaudible).

CHAIR LI TTLEFIELD: Let's -- we'd |ike
to hear your testinony and your comments. And you
can have three mnutes, which is the usual for
I ndi viduals. Are you here?

MR WOODWARD: Can you hear ne?

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Yes, we can.

Wl cone.

MR WOODWARD: Ckay. Thank you very
much. | just was able to | og on.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Ckay.

MR, WOODWARD: Al right.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Pl ease proceed.
Yep.

MR. WOODWARD: (Good evening. M nane is
Patrick Wodward and | live at 111 North Van Buren
Street. M testinony will address the overarching

need for the Planning Area 4 Nei ghborhood Plan to
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preserve and protect the character of the
nei ghbor hood as a predom nantly single-famly,
det ached residenti al .

In the md-1980s, | had the privilege of
participating in the nei ghborhood pl anni ng process
that ultinmately led to the adoption of the 1989
Nei ghbor hood Pl an for Planning Area 4. Then as
now, the residents expressed their views in a
conpr ehensi ve survey. Then as now, the residents
voi ced their concern over the encroachnment into
t he nei ghbor hood of nonresidential devel opnent.
The residents also indicated their strong
preference for maintaining the single-famly
residential character of the nei ghborhood.

Today we are faced wwth a new threat.
The proposal to all ow accessory dwelling units and
freestandi ng structures on lots wth single-famly
detached dwellings will eventually destroy the
character of the nei ghborhood that the residents
expressly want to be preserved. | concur with the
reasons given by Margaret Magner for disallow ng

ADUs in freestanding structures and wll not
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repeat them here.

| would like to add, however, that the
econom c pressure to build ADUs will fall equally
on devel opers and honeowners. It is beyond
gquestion that the value of a single- famly
residential lot will be increased by the potenti al
addi ti on of a standal one ADU. What honeowner
woul d not take advantage of this increased val ue
when selling his or her property. Simlarly, a
pur chaser who pays a higher price wll seek to
recoup that expense by building an ADU.

Finally, the state of Maryland is
required by law to assess every parcel of land at
its highest and best use. The allowance of two
residential units on one lot wll eventually | ead
to a higher assessnent and higher real estate
t axes.

In conclusion, | respectfully request
t hat you preserve and protect the residential
character of Planning Area 4 by prohibiting any
accessory dwelling unit in a standal one structure

on alot with a single-famly, detached dwelling.
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In this way the voice of the residents will be
heard. Thank you very nuch.

CHAI R LI TTLEFI ELD: Thank you, M.
Wodward. And I'mglad you finally nade it. W
were just about to wap up, so thanks again for
your conments.

| assune we are w appi ng up.

MR WOODWARD: Ckay, (i naudible).

CHAIR LI TTLEFI ELD: Yep, have a good
evening. So, I'll ask staff, is that -- do we
have anybody el se? One |ast chance. Gkay. Then
t hat does concl ude our public testinony, our
neeting agenda item

(Wher eupon, the PROCEEDI NGS wer e

adj our ned.)

* * * * *
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CERTI FI CATE OF NOTARY PUBLI C

|, Carleton J. Anderson, |Il do hereby
certify that the forgoing electronic file when
originally transmtted was reduced to text at ny
direction; that said transcript is a true record
of the proceedings therein referenced; that | am
nei t her counsel for, related to, nor enployed by
any of the parties to the action in which these
proceedi ngs were taken; and, furthernore, that |
amneither a relative or enpl oyee of any attorney
or counsel enployed by the parties hereto, nor
financially or otherwise interested in the outcone

of this action.

Carleton J. Anderson, |||

(Signature and Seal on File)

Notary Public in and for the Conmmonweal t h of

Virginia

Comm ssi on No. 351998
Expi res: Novenber 30, 2020
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